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TTT Draft SOW Questions & Answers

1. I heard that the contract would be approx. $6M over 2 years with a 4% fee?
Answer: This data is incorrect. We will not be releasing an estimate of the contract value as we do not want to hinder any offeror’s approach by providing an unrealistic estimate that may not coincide with what it may really cost them to carry out their approach, whether it be too much or too little money. 

2. Is their an initial estimate of the program cost and fee on an annual basis?

Answer: We will not be providing an estimate. See response in question 1.
3. Would you consider an approach with risk and reward shared as evenly as possible between the TTT contractor and the licensee?  
Answer:  It is difficult to answer this question as posed.  I assume (perhaps incorrectly) that you are envisioning a licensing arrangement where the TTT contractor is financially invested (risk) in the licensee and would receive a portion of the earnings (reward) if the company’s shares were sold via an initial public offering.  While NASA does not want to discourage offerors from new and innovative approaches to conducting technology transfer, these approaches need to be balanced by NASA’s desire to avoid conflicts of interest during the contractor’s performance of work under this contract.  The draft RFP has several clauses which pertain to conflict of interest.  Please review these clauses for a more thorough discussion of the topic. In turn, this will not be allowable as part of this contract. 
4. Given that many of the likely effective affiliate organizations will be non-profit entities, and insofar as some portion of these affiliates may not qualify as small businesses under the SBA rules, does NASA intend to accept this circumstance to be a mitigating factor for a small business subcontracting plan?

Answer: Per FAR definition, a non-profit does not meet the criteria to be classified as a “small business concern”. Thus, non-profit organizations are not eligible to be included in a Prime Contractor’s small business subcontracting plan unless they are a Historically Black College/University (HBCU). Although they are not eligible to be included in the small business subcontracting plans non-profits are eligible to be utilized as subcontractors or teaming partners elsewhere.  
5.  There is some concern that EVM will run into difficulty with some aspects of this contract for the following two fundamental reasons:

        The baseline will be difficult to define initially and even tougher to hold constant as NASA program requirement evolve.

        The contractor may be held accountable for outcomes for which associate contractors share responsibility, while the contractor has no assurance of being in a position to direct the associate contractor to perform.  Will roles and responsibilities be clear and distinct between the TTT contractor and these associate contractors in order to support accountability?

 Answer: The baseline for this contract effort should be a detailed plan which articulates how the offeror intends to execute the contract for a period up to six months after contract award. The remainder of the budget for the contract should be accounted for in the planning packages (or summary level planning packages) which can be provided in greater detail as the program executes.  Subsequent phases (beyond the first six months) must obtain authorization from the COTR to proceed before the contractor begins work. Once the baseline is established, it should only be changed as a result of a scope change to the original contract effort as approved by the appropriate government official. This is a cost contract with a significant cost value which carries over into a requirement to manage this effort using earned value management principles. 

6.
Will the government please clarify as to whether the employee location list is only for full time onsite personnel, as is suggested by the "description/use" on CD-001, or are we to include all contract personnel that will spend any time at each onsite location?
 Answer: The employee location list will be for any Contractor personnel doing work onsite whether full-time or part-time. This requirement does not apply to Contractor personnel coming onsite for short periods of time, i.e. several hours, to do work as long as they are not physically located onsite permanently. 
7. The Contractor may be held accountable for the outcomes for which associate contractors share responsibility, while the contractor has no assurance of being in a position to direct associate contractors to perform. Will roles and responsibilities be clear and distinct between the TTT Contractor and the associate contractors in order to support accountability?

 Answer: The Contractor is expected to negotiate and establish signed agreements with associate contractors to distinguish roles and responsibilities. These agreements will have to be approved by the appropriate NASA official. We don’t think that there will be any concern as to associate contractors affecting the performance of the TTT Contractor given the nature of interaction required with the associate contractors. 
8. The SOW does not clearly depict the relationship of the Contractor to the NASA field centers.  It would be most helpful if the Contractor’s interface with the centers, as well as the Headquarters Program Manager’s interface to the field centers, could be clarified.
a.   For example, does the Contractor assist the field center IPP Officers in formulating the Center Project Plans? the associated metrics? the proposed budgets?
Answer: While each Center differs somewhat in the manner in which they conduct business, it is expected that each Center IPP Office will take the lead in formulating the Center Project Plans, associated metrics and proposed budgets.  The Contractor will be asked to provide input to those plans and is encouraged (but not required) to suggest tasks/metrics aimed at improving the overall performance of the program.

b.
Does the Contractor provide both Spin In and Spin Out support to the field centers? Will it help the program and project managers at the field centers identify firms, government labs, or universities with technologies of value to the execution of their programs and projects AND it will help the field centers commercialize technologies?
        
Answer: Yes.  The Contractor is expected to provide both spin in and spin out support to the field centers.  For additional guidance, please refer to Sections 2.3 and 2.4 of the most recent version of the Statement of Work.  


c.
For Center Initiated Partnerships, will the Contractor be involved both at the front end and back end of the process, working with the centers to ID technology needs as well as partnership possibilities?
Answer: It is anticipated that NASA will provide a list of technology needs to the Contractor annually, with quarterly updates.  The Contractor shall identify and recommend prioritized opportunities for infusion partnerships based on the set of technology needs provided by NASA and their commercial relevance. Refer to Section 2.3 of the Statement of Work for a more thorough discussion of this topic..
9.
What will be the relationship of the Center Associate Contractors that have been identified by NASA Headquarters with the TTT Contractor?  Will they provide any support to the TTT Contractor and its activities? What types of support will they provide to the field centers?   Clarity of this issue would help reduce overlap and duplication of services, as well as enable future subcontracting opportunities with associated contractors on a case by case basis.
Answer: A list of Associate Contractors will be provided with the Draft RFP. The TTT contractor will be expected to establish their agreements with these Associate Contractors and submit these agreements to NASA for approval. This requirement is discussed in further depth in the draft RFP. 

10. The SOW makes reference to University Led Partnerships, Outreach-related contractors, and existing contracts and contractors.  Could you please identify their various entities and clarify their roles and responsibilities in the execution of the TTT program? 
Answer: The exhibit that describes the IPP program provides the organizational breakdown, goals and objectives of each of the program elements. This contractor under the direction of the Technology Transfer program element will be expected to support all elements of the program to the extent stipulated in the SOW. 
 

11. In light of recent policy and budgetary decisions concerning the overall Exploration Technology Portfolio, will the Industry Led Partnerships still be initiated? Will consideration of this new initiative be deferred until the Architecture Studies are completed this summer?
Answer: There has been no change to this initiative at this time. We will provide an update if this requirement changes in the future. 

12. What will be the roles and responsibilities of the TTT Contractor with the SBIR Program?  How will the Contractor be expected to support Headquarters and the Centers as part of this important program?
Answer: At present, the TTT Contractor is not expected to provide support to either the SBIR or STTR Programs. 
The Contractor will support both the Industry-Led and University-Led Partnership Programs which are managed and, to a large extent, executed by Headquarters personnel.  The Outreach Program Manager will also require the support of the Contractor as outlined in Section 2.5 SOW.  Finally, the Contractor will support the Commercial Technology Program Manager - ITTP Division on tasks (the majority of which are outlined in Section 1.0 SOW), as directed.
13. What will be the roles and responsibilities of the TTT Contractor with the STTR Program?  How will the Contractor be expected to support Headquarters and the Centers as part of this important program?
See answer provided in question 12.
14. There are some discrepancies between the material presented in the PowerPoint Presentation at Industry Day and the SOW.  The key discrepancy is that the numbering system of the presented WBS does not appear to map to the SOW.  Will this be aligned or clarified before the release of the final RFP?
Answer: We believe that this numbering discrepancy has been clarified in the draft RFP. 

15. In several sections of the SOW, there are “the contractor shall” statements for the preparation and delivery of plans but there are no corresponding sections for the roles and responsibilities of the Contractor in the execution of these plans. For example, Section 2.4.7, Continuous Engagement, contains a requirement that the “contractor shall prepare and deliver processes and procedures, i.e. the Plan”. It goes on further to discuss the need to integrate these processes and procedures with the portfolio management process.  But it does not clearly indicate what role the Contractor will play in the execution of the Plan.  Could you please elaborate for this and other plans in the SOW?  
Answer: We believe that this question has been addressed in the draft RFP.  
16. Could you please provide greater clarity on the overall roles and responsibilities of the Leadership Team versus the day to day Program Manager for the TTT Program?  
Answer: The Commercial Technology Program Manager has established a leadership team comprised of himself, Program Element Managers, the Senior Patent Attorney in the Office of General Counsel, the NTTS Project Manager, and the Technology Transfer Officers from each of the ten NASA field centers.  These individuals acting together provide management guidance and direction, budget formulation and advocacy, and program control and oversight.  The Program Manager solicits input form his leadership team but is ultimately responsible for and has decision-making authority regarding the overall direction of the TTT Program. We believe that this relationship between the leadership team and the contractor has been clarified in the SOW in the draft RFP. 
17. As part of the Transition Plan from the current regime to the TTT regime, what steps will be taken by NASA to capture data and technical information under the purview of the existing contractor teams?  Will any of this data be stored and accessible in the NTTS database?
Answer: We are allowing offerors to propose an approach on whether they want to use this data. If so, we are relying on the Field Centers to provide this data and technical information and not the existing contractors.

18. In response to a question raised at Industry day, you indicated that a small firm could not both run this project AND enter into a partnership agreement.  If the necessary firewalls are in place between the group operating the TTT Program and other groups within the parent organization or affiliated organizations managing the contract, is the managing organization precluded from participating in the many innovative programs and partnerships that will be formulated and proposed?
Answer: While the Contractor is not precluded from participating in the partnerships, it would have to show NASA that a conflict of interest does not exist during the contractor’s performance of work under this contract.  Also, it is important to keep in mind that NASA’s staff and contractors are expected to avoid not only an actual conflict of interest but the appearance of a conflict of interest. 
19. As noted in the SOW, Spin In Technology needs and requirements will be transferred from the IPPO Office to the Contractor.  These requirements will be obtained from Mission Directorates and Centers. To what extent will prime contractors for major programmatic activities also have Spin In and Technology Infusion roles and responsibilities?  Will the lines of demarcation be clear?

Answer: Prime contractors have specific Spin-In roles and responsibilities specific to the contracts and missions they support. IPPO focuses on technologies that are not specifically addressed in these other contracts, and IPPO may be tasked to identify and infuse technologies in support of specific mission directorate requests. We believe that this is a clear demarcation of responsibilities. 






